UNI TED STATES
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z w § REG ON 10 g w §
% B 1200 Si xth Avenue % 3

o Seattle, Washington o

I N THE MATTER OF
Docket No. SDWA-10-2001-0147
Appl e Bl ossom Court a.Kk. a.
Appl e Bl ossom Mobi |l e Honme
Par k, Bruce Benz, and
Patricia Benz

Respondent s.

N N N N N N N N N

DEFAULT ORDER AND | NI TI AL DECI SI ON

. 1 NTRODUCTI ON

This Default Order is issued in a case brought under the
authority of the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), 42 U S.C. 8§
300f et seq. The Conplaint, filed pursuant to Section
1414(g)(3) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 3009-3(g)(3), alleges that
Respondents failed to conply with an Adm nistrative Conpliance
Order (ACO) issued in response to violations of the National
Primary Drinking Water Regul ations (NPDWR), 40 C.F.R Part
141. Conplainant is the Manager of the Drinking Water Unit
for Region 10 of the United States Environnental Protection

Agency ( EPA).
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Pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing
the Adm nistrative Assessnent of Civil Penalties at 40 C F. R

Part 22, 64 Federal Register 40138 (July 23, 1999) and based

upon the record in this matter and the foll ow ng Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Determ nation of Penalty,
Conpl ai nant's Modtion for Default Judgnent is hereby GRANTED

Respondents are hereby found in default and a civil
penalty is assessed in the anmount of $15, 000.

[1. FINDINGS OF FACT

Pursuant to 40 C.F. R § 22.17(c) and based upon the
entire record in this matter, | make the follow ng findings of
fact:

2.1 On June 28, 2001, EPA issued Marie Benz an
Adm ni strative Conpliance Order (ACO pursuant to Section
1414(g) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. 8 300g-3(g). The ACO was
issued in response to a failure to abide by the NPDWR, 40
C.F.R Part 141.

2.2 Mari e Benz received a copy of the ACO by certified
mail on July 5, 2001

2.3 Marie Benz is an operator of a public water system
| ocated at Apple Bl ossom Mobile Hone Park in Oregon. Bruce
Benz and Patricia Benz are owners of this public water system

Mari e Benz was previously the owner of this system before
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transferring this interest to her son, Bruce Benz, and his

wi fe, Patricia Benz. As an operator of the public water
system Marie Benz is an agent acting on behalf of the owners,
Bruce Benz and Patricia Benz.

2.4 On March 28, 2002, Conpl ai nant issued an
Adm ni strative Conplaint for Penalty and Notice of Opportunity
for Hearing (Conplaint) based on the failure to conply with
t he ACO

2.5 Respondents were served a copy of the Conpl aint by
certified mail on April 3, 2002.

2.6 Conpl ai nant notified Respondents of the requirenment
at 40 C.F. R 8 22.15 mandating that Respondents file a witten
answer within 30 days after service of the Conplaint. An
extension of time for answering the Conplaint was ordered by
the Presiding Oficer, with the final deadline set at June 3,
2002.

2.7 Respondents have failed to file an answer with the
Regi onal Hearing Clerk.

2.8 On Septenber 18, 2002, Conplainant filed a Mtion
for Default Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. The Mtion
was served on the Respondents by first class mail, return

recei pt requested.
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2.9 As of the date of this Default Order and Initi al
Deci si on, Respondents have failed to respond to the Mtion for
Default Order.

[11. CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

Pursuant to 40 C.F. R § 22.17(c) and based upon the
entire record in this matter, |I make the follow ng conclusions
of | aw

3.1 Procedure for this case is governed by the
Consol i dated Rul es of Practice Governing the Adm nistrative
Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/ Term nation
or Suspension of Permts (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F. R Part
22. The Consolidated Rules, 40 C.F.R 8§ 22.17(a), apply to
notions for default, and provide in pertinent part:

(a) Default. A party may be found to be in
default: after notion, upon failure to file a tinmely
answer to the conplaint; .... Default by respondent
constitutes, for purposes of the pending proceedi ng
only, an adm ssion of all facts alleged in the

conpl aint and a waiver of respondent’s right to
contest such factual allegations.

(c) Default order. When the Presiding Oficer
finds that default has occurred, he shall issue a
default order against the defaulting party as to any
or all parts of the proceeding unless the record
shows good cause why a default order should not be

i ssued.
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3.2 The Conplaint was lawfully and properly served upon
Respondents in accordance with the Consolidated Rul es, 40
C.F.R § 22.5(b)(1).

3.3 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 22.15(a) and by order of
the Presiding Oficer, Respondents were required to file an
answer by no | ater than June 3, 2002.

3.4 Respondents failed to file a tinely answer to the
Conpl ai nt .

3.5 Conpl ai nant has nmoved for this Default Order in the
manner prescri bed by the Consolidated Rules, 40 C.F.R 8§
22.17(a).

3.6 Respondents are in default pursuant to the
Consol idated Rules, 40 C.F.R § 22.17(a).

3.7 In accordance with 40 C.F. R 8§ 22.17(a), the
default in this case constitutes an adm ssion by Respondents
of all the facts alleged in the Conplaint and a waiver by
Respondents of a right to a hearing regarding these factual
all egations. Respondents are thus held to have commtted the
viol ations alleged in the Conplaint.

3.8 \When the Presiding Oficer finds that a default has
occurred, he shall issue a Default Order against the
defaulting party as to any or all parts of the proceeding
unl ess the record shows good cause why a default order should

Default Order
Page 5 - Docket No. SDWA-10-2001-0147 5



not be issued. If the order resolves all outstanding issues
and clainms in the proceeding, it shall constitute the Initial
Decision. 40 C.F.R 822.17(c). The present Default Order,
whi ch resol ves all outstanding issues and clainms in this
proceedi ng, constitutes the Initial Decision in this matter.

3.9 As described in the “Determ nation of Penalty”
section below, | find the Conpl ai nant’ s requested civil
penal ty of $15,000.00 is properly based upon the statutory
requi renments of the Safe Drinking Water Act and the cited EPA
penal ty policy.

| V. DETERM NATI ON OF PENALTY

4.1 Under the Consolidated Rules, the Presiding Oficer

shal |l determ ne the anmount of the civil penalty

based on the evidence in the record and in
accordance with any penalty criteria set forth
in the Act. The Presiding Oficer shall
consider any civil penalty guidelines issued
under the Act. The Presiding Oficer shal
explain in detail in the initial decision how
the penalty to be assessed corresponds to any
penalty criteria set forth in the Act . . .

If the respondent has defaulted, the Presidin
Officer shall not assess a penalty greater than
t hat proposed by conpl ainant in the conplaint,
t he prehearing exchange, or the notion for
default, whichever is |ess.

40 C.F.R 8§ 22.27(b).
4.2 A penalty of $15,000 proposed in the Conplaint was
cal cul ated taking into account the factors prescribed by
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Section 1414(b) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300g-3(b), and is
consistent with the policy factors relied upon by EPA in cases
of this type.

4.3 Conpl ai nant’ s explanation of its cal culation of the
proposed penalty, as set out on pages 5 and 6 of Conplainant’s
Menor andum i n Support of Motion for Default Order and in
Conpl ai nant’ s Suppl emental Menorandum of Law and Facts in
Support of Proposed Civil Penalty is incorporated herein by
reference.

4.4 Conpl ai nant’s Suppl emental Menorandum of Law and
Facts in Support of Proposed Civil Penalty contains an
expl anati on of the penalty calculation as set forth belowin
Par agraphs 4.5 throgh 4.13:

4.5 There are statutory criteria for a district court to
consi der when determ ning an appropriate civil penalty to
assess for the failure to conply with an order issue under
subsection 1414(g) of the Safe Drinking water Act (SDWA), 42
U.S.C. 8 300g-3(g). According to subsection 1414(b) of the
SDWA, such criteria include “the seriousness of the violation,
t he popul ation at risk, and other appropriate factors”. 42
U S . C. 8 300g-3(b). While there are no equival ent statutory
criteria for consideration in an adm nistrative matter, the
United States Environnental Protection Agency (EPA) has
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devel oped a witten policy that is to be used by EPA personnel
when cal cul ating an appropriate penalty amount to be paid in
the settlement of a claimfor violation of an order issued
under subsection 1414(g) of the SDWA, 42 U. S.C. 8§ 300g-3(9).
This policy was effective May 25, 1994, and is entitled
“Public Water System Supervision Program Settlenment Penalty
Policy for Civil Judicial Actions and Adm nistrative
Conpl aints for Penalties” (PWS Policy).!?

4.6 Conpl ainant has followed the PWS Policy in
cal cul ating the proposed civil penalty to be paid in this
matter. I n so doing, Conplainant nade an attenpt to
acconmplish the objectives set forth in the PWs Policy. These
obj ectives are: (1) deter violations of the |law by placing the
violator in a worse position financially than those in the
regul ated conmunity who have conplied in a tinely fashion; (2)
provide fair and equitable treatnment of the regul ated
community; and (3) provide an expeditious resolution of the

identified problens. PWS Policy at 1.

1 The PWs Policy is Exhibit 10 to Conplainant’s “Mtion
for Default Order”.
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4.7 Conpl ai nant performed a step-by-step cal cul ati on of
t he proposed penalty amount.? This cal cul ati on was based upon
ei ght violations of the National Primary Drinking Water
Regul ati ons which are docunented to have occurred during the
period of tinme from January 1, 1997, through Decenber 31,
2000. There was a total of 358 nonths of violations.?

4.8 The calculation of the proposed penalty took into
consi deration the econom c benefit derived by Respondents, and
the gravity of the violations. PWS Policy at 2. The gravity
factor included consideration of the seriousness of the
viol ations and the population at risk. 1d. These are anpbng
the criteria a district court would consider in assessing a
civil penalty under subsection 1414(b) of FIFRA, 42 U S.C. 8§
300g-3(b). The gravity anmount was adjusted based on the
degree of w |l fulness and/or negligence and the history of

nonconpliance. PWS Policy at 2.4 These factors may or may

2 According to subsection 1414(g) of FIFRA, 42 U S.C. §
300g-3(g), and the Civil Mnetary Penalty Inflation Adjustnent
Rule, 40 C.F.R Part 19, Conplainant may seek a civil penalty
of $5,500 to $27,500 in this adm nistrative proceedi ng

3 Based upon 10,675 days of violation, and according to
Section 1414(g) of FIFRA, 42 U.S.C. 8§ 300g-3(g), and the Civil
Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustnent Rule, 40 C.F. R Part 19,
t he maxi num penalty which could be assessed in a judicial case
is $293, 500, 000.

4 Two other potential factors, litigation considerations
and ability to pay, did not enter into the analysis by
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not be consistent with what a district court would consider as
“ot her appropriate factors” under subsection 1414(b) of FIFRA,
42 U.S.C. 8 300g-3(b).

4.9 The econoni c benefit cal cul ation began with an
estimte of the avoi ded and del ayed costs for each of the
violations. These estimtes were based upon typical sanpling
and anal ysis costs fromrandom private | aboratories in the
state of Oregon and the | ocal county of the Apple Bl ossom
public drinking water system The estimates also included the
cost to the state of Oregon for performing a sanitary survey>®.
These costs are broken down as foll ows:

(1) coliform sanpling

10 tests @$ 15.75 per sanmple = $157.50

(2) sanitary survey

$530 total: Respondents’ portion = $65. 00
(3) radiol ogical

2 periods @$ 65 per sanple = $130.00
(4) |ead/copper

10 tests @$ 15 per sanple =__ $150. 00
Total econom c benefit = $967.50

Conpl ai nant, because there was no information provided by
Respondents from which to reasonably cal cul ate either of these
factors.

5 This function should have been, at least in part,
perfornmed and funded by Respondents.
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4.10 In calculating the econom c benefit, Conplai nant
coul d have al so taken into account the costs avoided for
havi ng not provided public notifications, consunmer confidence
reports, printing and mailing. As a formof conmprom se to
Respondent s, Conpl ai nant chose not to include an estimte of
t hese costs as part of the proposed civil penalty anount.

4.11 The gravity of the violations was cal culated with
consi derabl e wei ght given to the I ong history of problens
associated with the Apple Bl ossom public drinking water
system Conpl ai nant has information indicating that, since at
| east 1987, there have been failures at this systemto nonitor
for coliformand to report results which exceed the nmaxi mum
contamnant limt for coliform In addition, prior to
commencenent of this proceeding, there had been no sanpling at
this systemfor |ead and copper. Also, there was no
conpliance with the Adm nistrative Conpliance Order prior to
initiation of the instant penalty proceeding. 1In total,
several violations have existed unabated for many years, and
have resulted in the potential exposure of as many as 60
people to a risk of harm from consunption of contam nated
drinking water.

4.12 Utilizing a worksheet, which is a part of the PWS
Policy, the initial gravity amunt cal cul ated by Conpl ai nant

was $4,291. This anount was adjusted upward 200% based upon a
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consideration of the willingness and/ or negligence and history
of non-conpliance. 1In essence, given that regul atory

requi rements were disregarded for years, Conpl ai nant

determ ned that a 100% i ncrease was warranted for the gravity
ampunt. PWS Policy at 6-7. There was also a 100% i ncrease
for the many failures to cooperate with conpliance efforts by
EPA and the state of Oregon. [d. at 7. Conplainant issued an
Adm ni strative Conmpliance Order and two notices of non-
conpliance with the Adm nistrative Conpliance O der.
Conpl ai nant then initiated this penalty proceeding. Prior to
these efforts, the state of Oregon issued notices about
failures to conply with drinking water requirenments dating as
far back as 1992. None of these governnment efforts produced
conpl i ance.

4.13 The adjusted gravity conmponent, conbined with the
econom ¢ benefit conponent, brought the total proposed penalty
anount to $13,840. In that a settlenment penalty amunt is
meant to represent a reasonable conpron se of the clains
agai nst Respondents for the maxi num statutory penaltys,
Conpl ai nant slightly increased the proposed cash settl enent

penalty anount to $15, 000.

6 See PWs Policy at 8 and footnote 3 above.
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4.14 | adopt the Conplainant’s penalty analysis and find
that a civil penalty of $15, 000. 00 agai nst Respondents is
appropriate in this case.

V. ORDER

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED that:

5.1 Default be entered agai nst Respondents pursuant to
Section 1414(g)(3) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. 8§ 300g-3(g)(3) and
t he Consolidated Rules, 40 CF.R § 22.17.

5.2 A penalty of $15,000 is hereby assessed agai nst
Respondent s.

5.3 No | ater than 30 days after the date that this
Default Order becones final, Respondents shall submt a
cashier’s check or certified check, payable to the order of
“Treasurer, United States of Anerica,” in the amunt of
$15,000 to the followi ng address:

Mel | on Bank

EPA Regi on 10

P. O. Box 360903M

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15251

Respondents shall note on the check the title and docket
nunmber of this admnistrative action,

5.4 Respondents shall serve a photocopy of the check to
t he Regional Hearing Clerk at the foll ow ng address:
Regi onal Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10

1200 Si xth Avenue, Mail Stop ORC- 158
Seattl e, WAshi ngton 98101
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5.5

Shoul d Respondents fail to pay the penalty

specified in Paragraph 5.2 above in full by its due date,
Respondents shall al so be responsi ble for payment of the
foll owi ng amounts:

5.6

| nt erest . Any unpaid portion of the assessed

penalty shall bear interest at the rate established
by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31
US C 8 3717(a)(1) fromthe date this Default Order
becones final, provided, however, that no interest
shal | be payabl e on any portion of the assessed
penalty that is paid within 60 days after this
Default Order beconmes final.

Handl i ng Charge. Pursuant to 31 U S.C. 8§

3717(e) (1) and Chapter 9 of EPA Resources Managenment
Directive 2540, a nonthly handling charge of $15
shall be assessed if any portion of the assessed
penalty is nore than 30 days past due.

Penalty Charge. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717

(e)(2), Respondents shall be assessed a penalty
charge of not nore than 6 percent per year for
failure to pay a portion of the penalty nore than 90
days past its due date.

In the event of failure by Respondents to make

paynment as directed above this matter nmay be referred to a
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United States Attorney for recovery by appropriate action in
United States District Court.

5.7 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R 8§ 22.17(b), this Default Order
is the initial decision in this matter. [In accordance with 40
C.F.R 8 22.27(c), this Default Order shall become final
within forty-five (45) days after its service upon the parties
unless it is appealed to the Environnental Appeals Board’ or
t he Environnmental Appeals Board elects, sua sponte, to review

the initial decision.

DATED this 13'h day of February, 20083.

[ si gned]
STEVEN W ANDERSON
Regi onal Judicial Officer

‘Under 40 C.F.R. 8§ 22.30, any party may appeal this Order
by filing an original and one copy of a notice of appeal and
an acconpanyi ng appellate brief with the Environnental Appeals
Board within thirty days after this Initial Decision is served
upon the parties.
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